
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

Case No,1:11-C1V-20926-HUCO ANDSTM

U.s, Commodlty Fntures Trading
Commission,

Plaintiff,

GlobeFx Club) Inc. @nd
Jttemy M unson Globc,

Defendants.

CONSENT ORDER FOR PERM ANENT INJUNCTION. CIVIL M ONETARY PENALTY

AND OTHER EOUITABLE RELIEF AGMNST DEFENDANTS
GLOBEPX CLUB. INC' AND R REM Y M UNSOX GLOBE

1. INTRODUCTION

On Match 17, 201 l , Plalntiff Commodity Futures Trading Commisslon (scommission''

or ''CFTC'') filet n Complaint against Dtfendant Jeremy Munson Globe ($'O1obe''), and

(AobeFx Club, lnc. ($'()FC'') (collectivcly ''Deftndants'') seeking inlunctlve and other equitable

relief, as well as the imposition of civil ptnalties, for violations of the Commodity Exchange Act

($6Act''), as amendçd by the Food, Conservation, and Energy Act of 2002, Pub, L, No. 1 10-246,

Title XII1 (the CFTC Reauthoyization Act of 2008 (''CllA'')), jj 13101-13204, 122 Stat, 1651

(enacted Jnne 18, 20û8), and the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumet' Plmtection Act

of 201 û (''Dodd-Franl( Act''), Pub' L, No. 11 1-203, Title V1l (thc Wall Street Transparency and

Acçountability Act of 2010), jj 701-774, 124 Stat. 1 376 (enacted July 21, 2010), to bc codified
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at 7 U,S.C- jg 1 et ,#dg., and the Commisslon Rcgulations ('dlkegulations'') promulgated

thereunter, 17 C.F.R. 9 1.1 et seq, (201 1),

Il. CONSENTS AND AGNEEM ENTS

To effect settlement of all charges allcged in th: Complaint against Defendants Globe

and GFC without a trial on the merits or any furtherludlcial pl'oceekings, Deftndants Globe end

QFC:

Consent to the entry of this Constnt Order for Permahent Injunction, Civil

Moaetal'y Penalty and Other Equitable Rtlief Against Dcfendants Globe and OFC (ssconsent

Order'');

Afflrm that they have read and agreed to this Consent Ordtl' volnntarily, and that

no promise, other than as specltlcally contained àerein, or threat, has bevn made by the

Commission or any member, officer, qgent or representativt thereof, or by any other pcrson, to

indnce consent to thîs Consent Order;

Acknowledge scrvlct of the summons and Complalnt;

Admit the jurlsdiction of this Col1!4 ovet them and the subjtct matttr of this action

pursnant to Section 6c of the Act, 7 U.S,C, 6 13a-1 (2006):

Admit the jurisdbctlon of tile Commission ovw' the conduct and transactions at

issue in thls action pursuant to Scction 6c of the Act, 7 U'S.C. j 13a-1 (2006))

Admit that venne properly lles wlth this Ccnl4 pursuant tn Stction 6c(c) of tlw

Act, 7 U,S,C, j 13a-1(e) (2006))

W aivc:

(a) any and al1 claims that they may possess undet the Equal Access to Justice

Act, 5 U.S.C. j 504 (2006) and 28 U,S,C, j 2412 (2006), and/or tbe rulcs promulgated by the
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Commission in conformity therewith, Part l48 of the Regnlatlons, 17 C.F.R, jj l 48, 1 et seq.

(201 1), rclating to, or arising from, thit action;

(b) any and a11 claims that they may possess under the Small Business Regtllatory

Enforctment Fairness Act of 1996, Pub. L' No. 104-121, jj 201-253, l 10 Stat, 847, 857-868

(1996), as amended by Pub. L. N0, 1 10-28, j 8302, 121 Stat, i 12, 204-205 (2007), l'elating to, or

arising from, this action)

(c) any claim of Double Jtopardy based upon thc institution of thls action 01. tlle

entry in this action of any order imposing a civil mondary penalty or any other relief, including

this Consent Ordcr; and

@) any and all rights of appeal from thls action;

Consent to the continuet jurisdiction of this Court oycr them fol. the putpose of

lmplemcnting and enfol,cing the terms and conditions of tllis Consent Order and for any dhet'

purpose relevant to this action, even if Deftndants now ot in tlw fnture rcside ontsidc the

jul'lsdiction of this Conl-t;

9. Agree that they will not oppost enforcement of this Consent Ordel' on the ground

that it falls to comply with Ruie 65(d) of thv Federql Rtlles of Civil Procedure and waive any

objection based thtreon;

1 0. Agree that neither they nor any of thei? agents or employees under thcir autilority

or control phall take any action or maltc any public statement denying, directly or indirectly, any

allegation in the Complaint o1' the Findings of Fac,t or Conclnsions of Law in this Consent Order,

or creating) or tending to create, the impression that the Complaint or this Consent Ordet is

without a factnal basis; provided, however, tàat nothing in this provision shall affeot their:

(a) testimonial obligations, or (b) right to take legal positions in othtr prootcdings to which the
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Commission is not a party. Dcfendants shall undel-take all steps necessal'y to tnsure that all of

thoir agents o? employees qnder their anthority and/or conttol understand and comply witll thls

agreement; and

l l . By consenting to the vntry of this Consent Order, neither admit nor deny the

nllegations of the Complalnt or the Flnding, of Fact and Conclusions of Law in this Consent

Order, exccpt as to jurlsdiction and venue, wllîl)h they admit. Ful.ther, Defendants agree and

intend tlhat thc allegations contalned ln the Complaint and aIl of the Findlngs of Fact and

Concluslons of Law contalned in thls Consent Order shall be taken as true Rnd cotrect and be

given preclnsive tffect, withogt further proof, in thc courst of: (a) any cqrrent or subsequent

bankruptcy proceeding flled by, on behalf of, or against Defendants; (b) any proceeding puouant

to Scction 8a of the Act, as amended, to be codified at 7 U'S'C, j 12a, and/or Part 3 of the

Regulations, 17 C.F.R. 9j 3,1 et seq, (201 1); and/o? (c) any procteding to enforce the terms of

this Consent Order'

12. Agtee to provide lmmediate notlct to this Coul4 atld the Connmisslon by ctletificd

mail, in the manner rtquired by paragraph 75 of Part VI of this Consent Or(let', of any

bankrnptcy proceeding filed hy, on behalf of, or agalnst them, whetht? inside or outside the

United States, and

Agr:e that no provision of this Consent Order shall in any way limit o1' impal? the

ability of any other person ot entity to seelt any lcgal or tqultable remedy against Dtfcndants in

any other proceedlng,

111. FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS

'rhe Court, bving fullï advised in the prtmises, finds that there is good cause fer the Qntl-y

of thi,s Consent Order and that thm-e is no just reRson for dclay. The Court thercfore dkrects the

4

Case 1:11-cv-20926-PCH   Document 53   Entered on FLSD Docket 10/04/2012   Page 4 of 20



entry of the following Findings of Fact, Concltlsions of Law, permanent injunction and equitable

relief ptlrsuant to Section 6c cf the Act, 7 U.S.C. j 13a- 1 (20û6), as set forth htrein,

THE PARTIES AGREE AND THE COURT HEREBY FINDS:

A, Findings of Fact

1. ' The Partie: Tn This Consent Order

14. Plainfiff Commodity Futnrts Trading Ctpmmission is an independent fcderal

regulatory agency chtwged by Congress with the responsibility for administering and enforcing

the Act, as amended, to be collifled at 7 U,S,C, 9j 1 et seq, , and the Rtgulatiolps promulgated

under it 17 C,F,R, jj 1.1 et seq, (201 l). The Commission maintains its principal office at Thrte

Lafayettt centre, 1 155 21'6 Stteet, N,W ,, Washington, D,C, 20581,

1 5, Dcfendant GlobeFx Club, Inc. is a Florida corpol'atlon, lncorporated in Angust

of 2008, whose principal place of business is locRted at 1005 N' Krome Avenue., #124,

Holnestead, Florida. OFC was registered with tile Commission as a Commodity Pool Operator

($'CPO'') from November 2098 until Septe'mber 2009. In March of 2009, during the National

Ftlturcs A. 
ssociation ($''NFA'') investlgation and audlt, GFC attcmpted to withdraw i'ts registration

antl NFA membership aûer whlch NFA placed a withdrawal hold penking compldion of it8

knvestigation. ln January of 2009) GFC tlled an application for registration as a commodity

trading advisor ($$CTA'') and that applicatlon remained pending untll witlldrawn in September

2009, Accorcling to its website) GFC operated the commodlty pool, GIobeFX St, Fund, NFA

suspended GFC'S membtrship qntl registratlon from March 2009 untll the completion of 1ts

investigation ia September 2009, Oa October 1, 2009, NFA permanently barred GFC from NFA

membership,

5
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16. Defendant Jeremy M unsnn Globe is a Florlda resldent and a prlncipal of GFC,

Hu was listcd wlth the Commission as a prlncipal of GFC until March 2009, In March of 2009)

dnring the NFA Investigation and audit, Globe withdrew as a principal of GPC,

2. Other Relevant Entity

The National Futnres Association is a 'fntures association registcred with the

Commission pursuant to Section 17 of the Act, 7 U,S,C, j 21 (20û6). NFA is a ptlvatt

corporation tllat setves as an indtlstry self-regnlatory organization. Its membership is composed

of futures commission merchants ('$FCMs''), CPOs, CTAS, int?oducing brokers and othel. futures

plmfeosionals registered w3th tho CFTC. NFA is responsible, under CFTC ovtrsight, f0r certaln

aspects of the rcgnlation of these futures entities and theil. associated pcrsons, See Rtgtllatlon

3,75, 17 C.F,R, j 3.75 (201 1), NFA focuses ptlmarily on the qualitlcations ank profclency,

flnancial condition, rdail salcs pradlces, and buslness conduct of its members'

3. TNe NFA'S Investigatlon and Audit

l 8. GFC registcred wlth the Commission, through NFA, as a. CPO on Noyember 2û,

2008,

Aftcr l'egistration was granted, GPC failed to tlle a disclosurc document or an

exemptlon notice with NFA, W lthotlt an NFA approved dijclosure statement or exemption,

GFC was prolpibited from soliclting clients and managlng client funds pursuant to NFA

Compliancc Rults.

20, In early 2009, NFX cliscovered that OFC was llsted as a solicitor for a FCM and a

fofex dealtr membet ('TDM'') and lnitlattd an oftlclàl investigRtion lnto whether GPC was

opcrating as a CPO, pursuant to the authority delegated to NFA by tht Commission.
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21 ' During the conrse of tlhe lnvcstigatlon and subsequent atldit, 'NFA discoveted thatl

(l) as early as July of 2008, Ol7C was already soliciting and accepting funds fol' a pool, fivt

months prior to GFC'S November 2008 CPO registration; (2) GFC maintained a website,

www,globefxcltlb.com, whicil indicated that GFC operattd GlobeFX St, Fund, a commodity

pool; ancl (3) the website inclnded a nIm-NFA approved solicitation disclosuro document for

22. Also durlng tlle lnvcstigation, NFA rectived a complaint from a person who had

invested $7,009 in a pool run by GFC, Tbe Complalnant stattll she was promlsed monthly

intetest payments by GFC but had only rcceived two monthly pqyments' The Complainant made

rtpeated attempts to contact GFC but her calls were not returned.

23, NFA'S investigation also revealed that in Stpttmbtr of 2008, GFC had opened an

omnibns account a.t l--rrade FX LLC ('çl-Tradq''), an FCM and FDM, and depositct $29,250 ln

the acçount, Over the next stveral weeks, approxlmately half of these funds were lost through

trading forcign exchange ('$fo1'ex''). T11e acconnl remained open tlntil Octobor of 2098, when the

remalnlng funds, approximately $15,000, were transfen'ed to a Bank of Amerlca account in the

name of OlobeFx Club.

24. On February 26, 2009, im NFA nuditot' contacted GFC and spoke with Olobe

l'egarding the current operatlng status of GFC. Globe lnformed the auïitor that GFC hild some

managed client acconnts and also solicited clicnt acconnss for Interbank FX LLC, an NFA

registered FCM and FDM ,

25, Thc NFA auditor informed Globe that OFC was prohlbited from sollciting Or

managing aocotlnts without an NFA approved solicitation disclosuro.
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26. Subsequent to thls conversatlon, the auditor attempted to contact GFC again but

there was no answer.

d, Defendanfs' Concealment of Material Facts and False Statemcnts or

M isrepresentatlons

Ot1 M al.ch 6, 2009, a senlot' compllance manager of NFA called GFC antl al8o

spoke to Olobe regarding GFC'S operatlng statns, Doring the conversation, Olobe told tlle senior

compliance managcr that GFC l4ad nevel' operated a pool or managed client accounts. This

statement by Glohe was false,

28, Globe's statement to the sengor NFA compliance manager was contrary to whet

Globe llad told the NFA auditot wceks carlicr.

29, Globt substqtlently admitted to tbe senior NFA compliance manager that GFC

hflil a trading account that belonged to his ''fritnds and famlly,''

The senior NFA compllance menager advlsed Globe that she was aware ef the

disclosure document on the OFC website and she warned Globe tlpat GFC could n0t use the

disclosnte document unless it was approvcd by NFA,

Globc claimed that the disclosure documcnt had been approved by NFA,

32, This statement by Olobe was also false.

33. On M arch l 1, 2009, an NFA audit team met wlth all of GFC'S principals,

inçluding Olobe, to ftll-ther discuss OFC'S operatlons and its cnrrcnt statua as a CPO'

34, ln written correspondence to NFA and orally, Globe continually denied that OFC

hakl ever operated a pool, received clitnt fnnds, managed client accounts or 1,e(1 a tradlng account

in the name of the firm, Olobc Rlso dtnied that GFC was working with any FCM S or FDMS.

8

Case 1:11-cv-20926-PCH   Document 53   Entered on FLSD Docket 10/04/2012   Page 8 of 20



35. A11 of thc above statements by Globe were false btcause Globt was aware of

GFC'S day-to-day business activitits Includlng tlmt GFC was accepting clicnt funds for a pool

and trading these funds ln a forex trading account.

36, The NFA aadit team confronted Globc with the client complaint'

At first) Globe denied the client's allcgations and tllen late? stated lhat the client

was Gl7C's only client,

38. NFA also confronted Olobc wsth the l-rlyade acconnt records,

39, Globe claimet that tht I-Tl.adc account was a pooled accotynt that lleld his

personal fnnds ant the personal fnnds of anotlher GFC princlpal, Christophm' Bonrne ($6Bourne'').

Globt also said that he and Bournt optned thc account as a pooled account because they planned

tc solicît commodity pool participants sometime in tht futtlre.

However, latel' that dity, Bourne admltted to the andit tcam that the I-T?ade

accotlnt ditl holt pool pal-ticipant funts.

4 1 . NFA asked both Bonrne and Olobe to prcduce perscmal trading records and bnnlc

statemcnts; both refused and asked to speak wlth their lawyel'.

42. Eventtlally, Globe and Bourne prodtlctd some of the records NFA reqtlested,

incitlding certain personal bank statements,

43. Additionally, Globe told NFA that contraly to his evrlier statements, OFC llad

lndtcd optned accounts for three other pool participants, in addltion to tht pool participant who

contactetl NFA. Globe provided the accotlnt opening dotuments for thest accotlnts,

44, The kocuments ptoduced by Globe show two large doposits into a Bank of

America account in thç name of ''Olobe Forex'' ila the amounts of $174,965 and $299,965, made

in September and Oçtober of 2008, respcctively.
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45, When questioned about the large deposits, Blmrnc claimtï tilal they wer: non-

interest bearlng pel'sonal loans from two fritnds in Trinidatl, Bourne also told NFA that thel'e

were no promlssory notes or other documentation regarding the loans.

46, 'NFA scnt a letter to Globe and Botlrne on March 13, 2009, requtsting additional

information in otdtr to proceed with its andit, including contact information for the two allegtd

lcnders in Trlnidad. NFA requestcd $l1: information be producrd by noon on M arch 1 6, 2009,

47, Globe and Bonrne failed (Q rtspond to the deadline.

48, NFA thcn contactcd Globe's and Boutne's attornty ankl demanded tlw responscs

by March 19) 20099 NFA also advised Olobe ahd Botlrne that NFA woulï seek the issuance of it

Membcr Responsibilfty Action ('fMRA'') agagnst GFC and suspend 9ts membership until OFC

fully responded to the NFA'S inqniries and NPA was satlsied that OFC was in full compllance

with a11 NFA requirements'

49. TI1c attorney fm' Globe and Bourne responded thq.t his clients would provicle

rQsponses by M arch 20, 2009.

On March 20, 2009, the attorney representlng Globe and Bourne e-mailed several

documents to NFA, which lncludcd expense account and gtneral account infolnnation for GFC,

51, One of the docnments emailed to NFA was enftled çsGlobeFx Checking

Accounts/Analysis of A1l Deposits and Withd.rawals,'' Thls docnment includes enttios fol'

'tclient Funds'' and sscash Advances to Globe and Bourne,''

52. Under tht tntry ''Client Funds,'' it was represcnted that GFC had $52 l ,930 in

client funds,

Under the entry ''Cash Advances to Globe and Botlrne,'' it was representtd that

Globt and Bournt had received $100,000 itl casih advanccs,

10
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Howtvtr, these docnments confllct with Olobe's prior statements to 'NFA whel,ein

itt had yreviously only idqntlfled four pool participants to NFA, whose total investments tqualed

$47,û0û--whick was dramatically less than the $521,939 shown as ''Client Fnnds.''

55' The NFA'S investlgation team noted that when the amonnt of the supposed loans

from the indivlduals ln 'rrlnidad was added to tht $47,099 investek by thc four knûwn pool

participants, the sum equals $521,930--th: exact amount shown under ''Client Funds,''

Based upon GFC'S own documentation, the individuats in Trinldacl appeal' to be

clients of GFC and not Ienders, Therefore, the $100,000 cash advance to Globe and Bontne

perforcc camc from clicnt funts,

On M arch 23, 2099, NFA contacted the attolmey for Globe and Boutne anll aguin

aslted for the contact lnfotmation of th: lndividuals In Trinidad wLo ptlrportedly loanet Globe

ant Bourne $474,930 to start GFC'

58. Neither Olobe nol' Bourne, nor tbeit counsel, responded to NFA'S reqtlest,

59. As n result, on March 24, 2009, NFA filcd a MRA which snspended GlobeFx's

NFA melnbership,

B. Collclusions uf Law

1. Jurisdictinn and Venue

60. This Court has jnrisdiction over this action pursuant to Stction 6c, of the Act,

7 U.S.C, j 13a- l (2006), which providts that wllenever i shall appear to the Commission tlmt

any person has engaged, 18 engaging, or is about to engage in any act or practice constitutlng a

vlolatlon of any provislon of the Act or any rnle, regnlation, or order promnlgatcd therennder, the

Commission may bring an action in the proper djstrict court of the Unitcd States against such

pel.so?l to enjoin stlch act or practice, or to enforce complianco with thc Aot, or any rule,

regulation or order theretlnder.

Case 1:11-cv-20926-PCH   Document 53   Entered on FLSD Docket 10/04/2012   Page 11 of 20



Venue properly lies with this Court pursuant to Scction 6c(c) of the Act, 7 U.S,C'

j 1 3a-1(c) (20û6), becausc the Dtfendants reside ln this jurlsdiction and the acts and practices in

violation of the Act occurted within this Distrlct,

2. Concealing M aterial Facts and M aking False Statemcnts or

M isrepresentatlons to NFA

62. By the conduct dtscrlbed ln paragraphs l thtough 61 above, in rcsponse to tbe

NFA investigation and autit, Defendant Globe wlllfully engaged in a scheme to conceal matel-ias

facts and madc false statements o? representatlons to NFA, including, but not limited to: (1)

GFC'S Lusiness operating status; (2) tlw managemcnt of pool partlclpants' accounts; (3) the

amount of money managet in the pnol on behalf of particlpnnts; (4) the number of pool

participants; and (5) tl'lc classitlcation of the $474,930 from Trinidad as a purpol-ted '$loal:'' rather

tban pool participants' funds) in violation of Section 9(a)(4) of the Act, 7 U.S.C. j 13(a)(4)

(2006),
By thc conduct desctibd in paragfaphs 1 tht.otlgh 62 above, Defenkant Glob:

engaged in a scheme to impede the NFA'S ilwestlgation by refuslng to fully and promptly

respond to th: (NFA'S qtlestions, and faillng to produce the reqtlested documents in a full and

tlmcly mannet'

64, Tlne acts, omisslons and misrepresentations by Defendant Globe were willftll and

materlal,

The foregoing acto, omissions and misrepresentations and willful concealment to

'NFA by Olobc occurred withln the scope of his employmtnt, oftke or agency with GFC;

therefore, pursuant to Sedion 2(a)(l)(B) of the Act, 7 U.S.C. j 2(a)(1)(B) (2006), antl Regulatlon

1.2, 17 C.F.R, 5 1,2 (201 1), GFC ls liablt for Globe's acts, omissions atld failures in violation of

the Act, its set fodh herein,

12
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66, Unless restrained and cnloined by this Court, there is a rtasonable likelihood that

the Dcfendants wiil continue to engage ln the acts and praçticts alleged in tlle Complaint ant in

slmllar acts and practîcts in violatlon of the Act and Regnlations.

1V, PERM ANENT INJUNCTION

IT IS HENE BY ORDERED THAT:

67, Based upon and in connectioh with the foregoing condqct, pursnant to Section 6c

of the Act, 7 U.S.C. j 13a-1 (20û6), Defendants are petmanently rcstralned, enjoincd and

prohibitck from directly or indirectly:

Violating Sectlon 9(a)(4) of the Act, as amended by the Dotld-Frank Act, to be

codifiell at 7 U.S.C. 5 13(a)(4)'

68. Deftndants are also pcfmanently restraîned, enloined and pfohibltet from Cil.ectly

or indirectly:

a. Trading on or snbject to the rules of any l'egistered entity (as that tcrm is defllwt

in Section la of tht Act, as amtnded 7 U.S.C. j 1a);

Entering into any transactlons involving commodity futures, optlons on commodity

futufes, commodity options (as that term is (kfineg in Regulation 1.3(hh), 17 C'F,R,

j l,3(hh) (20 1 1)) ('dcommodity options'h), sccurity futurts products, and/or fcvelgn

currency (as described in Sections 2(c)(2)(B) and 2(c)(2)(C)(i) of the Act, as

amendecl, 7 U,S,C, jj 2(c)(2)@) and 2(c)(2)(C)(i)) Cforex contracts'') for their own

personal account or for any account in which they a. direct or indirect interest;

c. Having any commodity futurcs, options on commodity futures, commodity

optlons, seçurity futnres plmducts, and/or forex contracts traded on thcir behalf;
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Controlllng o1' directlng the trading fol. or on behalf of any other person or entity,

whdhel' by power of attorney or otherwise, ln any account involvlng commoclity

futures, options on commodity futtlres, commodity options, security futures

products, and/or fomx contracts;

Soliciting, rectiving o? accepting any funds from any person for the purpose of

purchasing or selling any commodlty fbtnres, options on commodity futurts,

commodity optlons, securlty ftltures plmdtlcts, and/or forex contracts;

Applylng fnr ttgistration o1' claiming txemption from rcglstration with tlw

Commission ln any capacity, and engaglng in any actlvlty requiring such

registratioll or exemption from registratlon with the Commisslon, except as

provided for in Regnlation 4. 14(a)(9), 17 C,F,R. j 4.14(a)(9) (20 l 1); and/or

Acting as a principal (as tilat term is deflned in Regulatlon 3, 1(a), 17 C.F.R.

j 3, 1(a) (201 1)), agent or any othcr officer or employce of any person (as that

term is defined in Section la of the Act, as amended, to be codifled at 7 U,8'C,

j 1a) reglstercd, exempttd from registl,ation or tequlred to be reglstered witb thc

Commission except as provided for ln Rcgtllation 4.14(a)(9), 17 C,F,R,

j 4. 14(a)(9) (201 1).

V' CIVIL M ONETM W  PENALTY

A. Civil M onetary Penalty

Defendants shall, jolntly and severally) pay a civil monetary penalty in the

amount Of three-hundred fif)y thousand dollars, $350,000 ('SCMP Obligation''), plus post-

judgment interest, within ten (1û) days of the date of the etltry of this Conscnf Order, If the CMP

Obligation is not paid in full within ten (10) days of tlpe date of entl.y of thls Conscnt Order, then
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post-jndgment interest shall accrue on tllt CMP Obligation beginning on the datc of entry of this

Consent Ordm' and shall be determintd by using t, he Treasnry Bill ratt.prcvailing on tke date of .

tntry of thts Consent Ofder pursuant to 28 U.S.C, j 1961 (2006).

Defendants shall pay thelr CMP Obligation by electronlc funds transfer, U'S,

postal money order, certiied check, bank cashier's check, or bank money order' If payment is to

be made by other than by eltctronic funds trensfer, then tlle payment shall be made payable to

tlle Commodity Futures Trading Commission and stnt to the address below:

Commodity Futures Trading Commission

Division of Enforcement
AT'I''N: Accounts Receivables - AM Z 34û
E-meil Box: 9-AMC-AMZ-AR-CFTC

DOT/FAA/MMAC
6500 S, MacArthut' Blvd,
Oklahoma City, U11 73169
Telephone: (4û5) 954-5644

If payment by electronic funds transfet is chostn, Defendants shall contact Linda Znrhorst or ipe?

ztlccessor qt tile addrtss above to reçeive payment instructions and shall fnlly comply witll tlaosc

instrnctlons. Defcndants shall accompany payment of the CMP Obligation with a cover lctter

that identifies Defendants and thc name and (Iocket number of this ptoceeding, Defendants sllall

:llmtlltaneously transmit copies of thc cover letter and tlle form of payment to the: Dircctor,

Dlvjsion of Enforcement, Commodity Ftlturvs Tt'ading Commisslon, Threc Lafayette Centre,

1 155 21't Street) NW , W ashington, D'C, 20581) ant Chief, Office of Cooperativt Enforcement,

Divislen of Enforcement, Commodlty Fqtures Trading Commlssion, at thc same address,

B. Pravisions Related to M onetary Sanctions

Pal-tial Satlsfactlon: Any acceptance by the Commisslon of partial payment of

Defendants' CMP Obligation shall not be deemed a. waiver of their obllgation to make furthor

15
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payments pvltsuant to thls Consept Ol'der, or a waiver of tl'le Commission's right to seek to

compel payment of any remàining balance'

C, Cnoperation

Defendants shall cooptrate fully and expcditiously with tl:e Commission,

including the Commission's Division of Enforcement, and any other governmehtal agency ln this

açtion, and i'n any lnvestigation, civil litigation, or administl'ative matter felated to thc subject

matter of this action or any cqrrent or futql'e Commission investigation related theteto. A s part

of such coopemtlon, Defendants agree to ptovide any requestcd information relating to its

tlnancial statns inclnding, but not llmlted to, income and earnlngs, assds, flnancial statements,

asset transfers, tax returns, and assds held by them ln fbl-eign conatrles.

Vl. M ISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Notict: All noticcs reqtlfl'td to bc givcn by any provision irk thls Cons:nt Otdcr

shall be sent certlfied mall, mturn rcceipt reqatsted, as follows:

Notice to Commlssion:

Attention - Director of Enforcement
Commodity Futures Tt'adlng Commission
Diviskon of Enforcement '

1 155 21st Stred, N.W ,
W ashington, DC 20581

Notice to Defendants:

Jeremy Globc .
13495 SW  290 St.
Homestead, FL 33030

G1()beI?X Club, lnc. c/o Accountlng Solutions of Homestead

1005 N, Krome Avenu:

# 1 24
Homestead, Florita 33030

A!l such notices to thc Commlssion shall reference the name and tocltet number of this action.
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74. Change of Adëress/phone:

CMP Obligation as set forth in thls Consent Ordcr, DefGndants shall provid: written notice to the

Commisslon by certised mail of any change to his teltphon: lwmber and mailing address within

ten (10) caltndar days of the change,

Entire Agreement and Amtndments: This Consent Order incorporates all of tlle

tcrms and conclitions of the settlement among the pal.ties hercto to date, Nothing shell serve to

amend or modify this Consent Order ln any resptct whatsoevel', qnless: (a) reduced to writlng;

(b) signcd by a11 parties hçreto; and (c) approved by erder of this Coul-t.

Invalidation: If any provlsion of tllis Constnt Ortcr or if the appllcation of any

provision or circumstance ls lpelt invalld, then the remaicdqr of this Consent Ordcr ant the

application of the provision tc any other ptrson or circumstance shall not be affected by tlw

holding.

Waiver: The failnre of any party to thls Consent Ol'der at any time to rtqull'c

perfo?mance of any provision of thls Cbnsent Ortkr sllill in no manner affect the right of tlle

party at it later tlme to enforce the seme or any other provision of this Consent O?de1'. No waiver

in one or more instances of the breach of any provisinn contained in this Conscnt Ordcl' shall be

Until such time as Dtfendants satlsfy in full thcir

deemed to be or construed as a. further or contlnuing walver of stlc,h breaçh or waive? of $he

brcach of any other provision of tltis Consent Order.

78. Continuing Jutlsdlotion of thiB Court: This CotIl4 shall retain jurisdictlon of this

action ttl ensure compllance with this Cnnsent Order and for al1 other purposes related to this

action, lnclqding any motion by Dcfendants to modify or for relief from the terms of tàls

Conscnt Order,
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Injunctive and Eqnitable Relicf Provisions; The lnjtlnctive aad equltable relief

provlslons of thls Consent Ortcr shall be binding npon Defendants upon any person nncler their

authority or control, and upon any person who receives actual notice of thls Consent Orclm', by

personal service, e-mail, facslmile or otberwise lnsofar as ht or sht fs actlng in active concel-t or

pal-ticipation with Defendants.

80. Authorlty) GFC hereby warrants tllat Globe, ls a prinçipal of GFC, and that thls

Cotlsent Ort1et has been duly authorized by GFC and Olobe has been duly empowcred to slgn

and suhmit thls Conscnt Order on behalf of GFC.

Covnttlparts and Facsimile Execntion: This Constnt Order may bt cxecutet in

twO or more counterparts, él1 of which shall be consldered one and the same agreement and shall

bocome effective when one or more countetpat'ts hevc been signed by each of the partles hereto

ant kltlivered (by facsimilt, e-mail, or otherwlse) to the other party, it being undcrstood that all

parties neecl not sigtl the same cotlnterpart, Any counterpart or other signature to this Consent

Order tllat is clclbvered l)y any means shall be decmed fo? al1 pnrposes a, constitntlng good and

valid executlon ancl delivcl'y by stlcll par: of this Consent Order,

82. Dcfendants undetstand that the terms of the Conscnt Ordel' are enfol,ceabte

through contempt proceedlngs, and that, in any such proceetings they may not challenge tlle

validity of this Consent Order.

There bving no just reason fol' delay, the Clerk of the Conrt is hereby directcd to enter

this Consent Order for Permanent lnjunction, Civil Monetal'y Penalty and Othcr Eqtlitable Rclief

Against GlnbcFx Club, Inc' and Jeremy M unson Globe.
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